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Director
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Atlanta, GA 30329

Dear Director Walensky:

On September 21, 2021, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention’s (CDC)
Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report (MMWR) published a study titled, “Association
between K-12 School Mask Policies and School-Associated COVD-19 Outbreak — Maricopa and
Pima Counties, Arizona, July-August 2021” (hereinafter “the study”).! Between September and
October 2021, you publicly cited the study multiple times to support the conclusion that mask
mandates in schools help prevent COVID-19 infections.? On December 16, 2021, The Atlantic,
published an article that highlighted several purported flaws in the study.® | write to request
information related to CDC’s evaluation, publication, and use of a potentially flawed study in
support of school mask guidance.

Beginning in September 2021, you began to cite the study as evidence in support of
CDC'’s guidance that advocated for mask mandates in schools. On September 26, 2021, during
an interview on CBS Face the Nation, you stated, “[CDC] also published a study out of Arizona
that demonstrated that places that had no masks in place were three and half times more likely to
have outbreaks than places that did have masks in place.”* Two days later, on September 28,
2021, during a White House Press Briefing, you again stated that the Arizona study showed that

! Megan Jehn, Ph.D., et al., Association between K-12 School Mask Policies and School-Associated COVD-19
Outbreak — Maricopa and Pima Counties, Arizona, July-August 2021, MMWR, Oct. 1, 2021 (published online as an
early release on Sept. 24, 2021).

2 See Interview: Director Rochelle Walenksy, Face the Nation, CBS News, Sept. 26, 2021, available at
https://www.chsnews.com/news/transcript-cdc-director-rochelle-walensky-face-the-nation-09-26-2021/; Press
Briefing: White House COVID-19 Response Team and Public Health Officials, Sept. 28, 2021, available at
https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/press-briefings/2021/09/28/press-briefing-by-white-house-covid-19-
response-team-and-public-health-officials-58/ (statement by Director Rochelle Walensky); @CDCDirector, Twitter
(Sept. 28, 2021, 5:24 pm), https://mobile.twitter.com/cdcdirector/status/1442963327441719301; Press Briefing:
White House COVID-19 Response Team and Public Health Officials, Oct. 13, 2021, available at
https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/press-briefings/2021/10/13/press-briefing-by-white-house-covid-19-
response-team-and-public-health-officials-61/ (statement by Director Rochelle Walensky).

3 David Zweig, The CDC’s Flawed Case for Wearing Masks in School, The Atlantic, Dec. 16, 2021, available at
https://www.theatlantic.com/science/archive/2021/12/mask-guidelines-cdc-walensky/621035/.

4 Interview: Director Rochelle Walenksy, Face the Nation, CBS News, Sept. 26, 2021, available at
https://www.chsnews.com/news/transcript-cdc-director-rochelle-walensky-face-the-nation-09-26-2021/.
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masking in school resulted in a three and half times reduction in COVID-19 outbreaks.®> The
same day, your official twitter account tweeted a similar statement.® On October 13, 2021,
during another White House Press Briefing, you again cited to the Arizona study as evidence in
support of CDC mask guidance.’

Following the publication of the study and your repeated public statements about it, The
Atlantic, published an article that appeared to highlight a number of potential flaws with the
study. Among the alleged flaws highlighted in the article were:

e The period of time selected for the study, July 15-August 31, 2021, resulted in data
comparisons of schools that were open for as few as three weeks with schools that were
open for as many as six weeks. According to the article, the schools without mask
mandates were open longer than the schools with mask mandates;

e The study failed to determine whether the higher COVID-positive case rates in schools
without mask mandates were actually due to transmission that occurred at school,

e County guidance potentially resulted in students at schools with mask mandates not being
tested for COVID-19 at the same rate as students in schools without mask mandates. As
the article notes, Maricopa County testing guidelines were defined by the mask status of
the students in contact. Determining who to test based on masking status could lead to a
potential detection bias; and

e The study failed to control for vaccination status in schools.®

Following publication of the article, the authors of the study submitted a letter to The
Atlantic taking issue with the flaws identified in the article.® During a briefing with my staff,
CDC asserted that it stood by the study and the authors’ rebuttal letter.2 When asked when CDC
was provided with the rebuttal letter, CDC initially stated it had not received the rebuttal letter.!?

® Press Briefing: White House COVID-19 Response Team and Public Health Officials, Sept. 28, 2021, available at
https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/press-briefings/2021/09/28/press-briefing-by-white-house-covid-19-
response-team-and-public-health-officials-58/ (statement by Director Rochelle Walensky).

5 @CDCDirector, Twitter (Sept. 28, 2021, 5:24 pm),
https://mobile.twitter.com/cdcdirector/status/1442963327441719301.

7 Press Briefing: White House COVID-19 Response Team and Public Health Officials, Oct. 13, 2021, available at
https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/press-briefings/2021/10/13/press-briefing-by-white-house-covid-19-
response-team-and-public-health-officials-61/ (statement by Director Rochelle Walensky).

8 David Zweig, The CDC’s Flawed Case for Wearing Masks in School, The Atlantic, Dec. 16, 2021, available at
https://www.theatlantic.com/science/archive/2021/12/mask-guidelines-cdc-walensky/621035/.

9 Letter to Jeffery Goldberg, Editor-in-Chief, The Atlantic, from Megan Jehn, Ph.D., MHS, Associate Professor,
Avrizona State University, et al., Dec. 29, 2021 (on file with staff).

10 Briefing from CDC to the Senate Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations staff, Feb. 7, 2022 (notes on file
with staff).

4.



Dr. Rochelle Walensky
Mar. 1, 2022
Page 3 of 4

CDC later clarified that it had in fact received the letter on February 3, 2022.12 The authors of
the study, however, stated they sent CDC a copy of the letter “sometime the week of [December
20, 2021].7 13

Although CDC staff originally stated they stood by the study, you have recently made
statements that appear to acknowledge the study’s flaws. According to an article published in
Reason, during a closed door briefing before the House Energy and Commerce Committee, you
“acknowledged the ‘limitations’ of the Arizona study, as well as other studies the CDC has relied
upon to inform their [school masking] guidance...”** The fact that you and the CDC appear to
be willing to acknowledge potential flaws and limitations of this and other studies in nonpublic
forums raises serious questions about CDC’s commitment to transparency.

CDC’s COVID-19 guidance has had and continues to have a direct impact on the lives of
Americans as they attempt to navigate this pandemic. The lack of transparency from the CDC
on pandemic policy throughout the past two years has been appalling. | request that you provide
the following information and material by no later than March 15, 2021:

1. Did CDC receive a copy of the study authors’ rebuttal letter to The Atlantic the week of
December 20, 20217 If so, please explain why CDC apparently falsely stated it had not
received a copy of the study authors’ rebuttal letter until February 3, 2022;

2. All documents and communications referring or relating to the study;

3. All documents and communications between the CDC and the authors of the study;

4. All documents and communications referring or relating to Director Walensky’s use of
the study in public statements on September 26, September 28, and October 13, 2021;

5. All documents and communications referring or relating to the December 16, 2021 article
published in The Atlantic;

6. All documents and communications referring or relating to the study authors’ rebuttal to
The Atlantic article;

7. All documents and communications referring or relating to Director Walensky’s
acknowledgement of the study’s limitations;

8. A timeline on the CDC and MMWR review process for the study;

12 Email from CDC staff to Senate Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations staff, Feb. 9, 2022 (on file with staff);
Email from CDC staff to Senate Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations staff, Feb. 16, 2022 (on file with staff)
(“To the best of my knowledge, the letter was emailed to CDC on February 3™).

13 Email from Arizona State University staff to Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations staff, Feb. 24, 2022 (on
file with staff).

14 Robby Soave, In Leaked Audio, CDC’s Rochelle Walensky Privately Confirms She Won’t Relax School Mask
Guidance, Reason, Feb. 16, 2022, available at https://reason.com/2022/02/16/cdc-rochelle-walensky-masks-schools-
covid-leaked-audiol/.
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9. An explanation of whether the study was put out prior to publication under a press
embargo and, if so, the date of the embargo release; and

10. A breakdown of the:

a.

b.

Percentage of articles accepted by the MMWR during proposal phase out of
number of proposals submitted,;

Percentage of articles rejected by the MMWR during the proposal phase out of
number of proposals submitted,;

Percentage of articles rejected during each phase of the MMWR review process
out of number of proposals accepted,

Percentage of articles where during each phase of the MMWR review process
CDC requires changes to methodology, data collection, data analysis or how a
study is conducted out of number of proposals accepted,;

Percentage of articles that move for final approval and publication following the
MMWR phase review process; and

Percentage of articles rejected from final publication out of total articles that have
completed the MMWR review process.

Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

ﬁwﬁ% S

Ron Johnson
Ranking Member
Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations

cc: The Honorable Jon Ossoff

Chairman

The Honorable Christi A. Grimm
Inspector General
Department of Health and Human Services



